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JOYCE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FmEWEK
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_O—NF=ZA=1+—HILFE
2019 2018
—O—h#F —O—N\#F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & BT T BT T
Revenue WA 5 842,419 860,701
Other income H Yy 55 6 38,318 37.227
Direct costs and operating expenses BEERAREXER 7 (764,068) (816.248)
Selling and marketing expenses HERHEHE R 7 (34,688) (39.141)
Administrative expenses THER 7 (94,602) (105,320)
Other (loss)/gains, net HhF (E51E), A 8 (7,440) 4290
Operating loss EEEE (20,061) (58.491)
Finance costs b & AR 9 (4) (11
Share of (loss)/profit of an associate FribEs &N R (E18) /&7 17 (1,938) 3111
Loss before income tax MBRPTE T AT E R (22,003) (55,391)
Income tax (expense)/credit SR (BR) #H%2 11 (289) 666
Loss attributable to owners AFIRRELEE
of the Company (22,292) (54,725)
Loss per share BREER
- Basic and diluted —HARREE (1.4) HK cents (3.4) HK cents
13 7B ¥ (1.4)4L b AR
The above consolidated income statement should be read in LiERE W ES R PR M —OFBIE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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JOYCE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEZERER
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_O—NF=ZA=1+—HILFE
2019 2018
—O—h#E —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Loss for the year FEEE (22,292) (54,725)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hitir& (B5E)
Iltems that may be subsequently reclassified to EXAEDTAEAGEEESI
profit or loss EEmAEE
Net translation differences on foreign operations  /B/N&BE 2 E K F =58
- Subsidiaries —MEBAA (8,157) 8.827
- Associate =N (5) 71
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income Hithime# (BB kE (8,162) 8.898
Total comprehensive loss attributable to NEIRRELGREEEER
owners of the Company (30,454) (45,827)
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income LR A 2 ARG R BN —ORE -

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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JOYCE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEBBRRE
As at 31 March 2019
RZO—hWFE=ZA=+—HILFE
2019 2018
—O—h#&E —O—N\#F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 2 BET T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property. plant and equipment M- WERZE 14 31,156 45,737
Deposits and prepayments e kBENER 15 39,823 58,802
Interest in an associate REE RN RN ER 17 8,529 10,472
Financial asset at fair value through BAFEBBERLEN
profit or loss TREE 18 1,154 1.231
Deferred income tax assets EEMEHREE 24 6,650 6,603
87,312 122,845
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 58 156,177 158,026
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E MR ERIA 16 25,135 44,032
Deposits and prepayments e RERNER 15 33,884 17.787
Current income tax recoverable REFTSRHIE S - 99
Financial derivative assets PTHEEMEE 19 - 3,081
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFMEIER 20 349,426 340,834
564,622 563,859
Total assets BEHE 651,934 686,704
EQUITY &
Equity attributable to owners ARRRELESR
of the Company
Share capital i 23 162,400 162,400
Reserves G 290,576 321,030
Total equity fEREE 452,976 483,430
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JOYCE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBRR K
2019 2018
—O—h#F —O—N\#F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B BT T BT T
LIABILITIES a8\
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Deferred income tax liabilities BRIEFTSHBIE 24 318 -
Other non-current liabilities ﬁﬁﬁ#mﬁbfﬁﬁ 21 6,913 7.922
Financial derivative liabilities MTEEmMmBE 19 - 419
7,231 8,341
Current liabilities RBAEE
Trade and bills payables ENESERBERENER 22 64,268 56,414
Other payables and accruals and HMENREREIER &
contract liabilities BHEE 21 113,946 131773
Amount due to an associate JE - BSt & A R RIR 17 7,829 6.181
Financial derivative liabilities TESE wﬂ%fﬁ 19 5,684 565
191,727 194,933
Total liabilities EEHAE 198,958 203.274
Total equity and liabilities BaRkAEAE 651,934 686,704
The consolidated financial statements on page 66 to 135 were %iﬁé\%%ﬁl%ﬁz,%?éﬁﬂ%iﬁﬁﬂBﬂ%%%‘ﬁ@:@*ﬂ
approved by the Board of Directors on 6 June 2019 and were FRARNBBAMKERE
signed on its behalf.
Stephen T.H. Ng Paul Y.C. Tsui
Chairman Director
KRR (3 22
e E
The above consolidated statement of financial position should LalisR A B AR 2R P BB S — OFBERE

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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JOYCE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FERRER®RRK
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_O-—NF=A=+—HILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
RARRREMS
Exchange
Share Share Capital Contributed fluctuation  Retained Total
capital  premium surplus surplus Ere}ze&g earnings equity
)
BA  RHEE EXER  BAERHK ®E REER ERAD
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
BETT EETT BT E%EJFE) BRTT AB®T  BETR
ote
(H&E)
Balance at 1 April 2018 ZO-\EWNA—-R&RE 162,400 3,728 76 139,196 15,829 162,201 483,430
Loss for the year FEFRE - - - - - (22,292) (22,292
Other comprehensive loss tEaBE
Net translation differences on BINEEZIERFER:
foreign operations
- Subsidiaries —[B AR - - - - (8,157) - (8,157)
- Associate —BERA - - - - (5) - (5)
Total other comprehensive loss Hit e EE - - - - (8,162) - (8,162)
Total comprehensive loss REBEFR - - - - (8,162) (22,292) (30,454)
Balance at 31 March 2019 ZO-NE=ZR=+-H&RE 162,400 3,728 76 139,196 7,667 139,909 452,976
Attributable to owners of the Company
RAERREN
Exchange
Share Share Capital Contributed  fluctuation Retained Total
capital  premium _surplus surplus  reserve eamm%s qzuwt
BihsBE  AXBH%  HALHR EXLKDREE ZEERA
HK$'000 HK$ 000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000 HK$ oog
BETT BT A%TR ;%%fm) BEFT  A%TT  ABETET
ote
(BsE)
Balance at 1 April 2017 ZO—tENA-RERE 162,400 3728 76 139,196 6931 216,926 529,257
Loss for the year FEFE - - - - - (54,725) (54,725)
Other comprehensive income HitmalaE
Net translation differences on BNEBZERFER
foreign operations
- Subsidiaries —MEDE - - - - 8.827 - 8.827
- Associate -V - - - - 71 - 71
Total other comprehensive income H R4 8 KH - - - - 8,898 - 8,898
Total comprehensive income/(loss) Z&BWE / (F#E - - - - 8,898 (54,725) (45,827)
Balance at 31 March 2018 ZO-NEZRA=+—-R&H 162,400 3728 76 139,196 15829 162,201 483430
Note: M 5T
The Group's contributed surplus represents the excess of the nominal AEFHZGABHBER W NOFEESAERTE A ZH
value of the subsidiaries’ shares acquired over the nominal value of BRalzROBEEBREABIMBEITUMMERBRZIROEBE S
the Company's shares issued in exchange therefor during the group B ARAZHABBKREER - NNAOFEHSAEFIWEK
reorganisation in 1990. The Company's contributed surplus represents BARZARBBEADNGAETIMERBRZROHEAEZ
the excess of the fair value of the subsidiaries’ shares acquired pursuant o
to the Group reorganisation in 1990 over the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued in exchange therefor.
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should AR A s R R R RN s — OB

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_O-—NF=A=+—HILFE

JOYCE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEREREBR

2019 2018
—O—h# ZO—N\%F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 55 BET T BT T
Cash flows from operating activities EETENRERE
Operating loss L EE (20,061) (58.491)
Interest income MEWA . (5,369) (1,503)
Depreciation of property, ME BMERZETE
plant and equipment 17,458 21,667
Fair value loss on financial asset at fair X FEBEBIERLENS
value through profit or loss EEsATERAR 77 3,615
Net fair value losses/(gains) from TEEmMIAY Aifﬁﬁiﬂg/
financial derivatives (&A) %58 5,684 (2.097)
Loss on disposal/write-off of property,  H& WEWE  BELEEZ
plant and equipment Nt 207 -
Reversal of provision for onerous contract &5 18 1% & %9 2 1 & o] - (5.808)
Impairment charge on property, M- WE LR RE
plant and equipment 1,847 3.266
Operating loss before working capital LEESEHFI B EEE
changes (157) (39,351
Decrease in inventories FE 2R 3,946 25161
Decrease/(increase) in trade and 85 &k H M ERERE 2R,
other receivables () N 18,897 (20.912)
Decrease in deposits and prepayments &l & kB EBH 2w 2,882 15,758
Increase in trade and bills payables JERE SRR EN Eik 2 1
n \ 7,854 2.974
(Decrease)/increase in other payables andH fto & J AR T & FESHTH B Kk &
accruals and contract liabilities wadEz CRd) (18,836) 26,288
Increase in amount due to an associate  JEAT B & A &) 538 2 1 N 1,648 2435
Cash generated from operations EEEENRS 16,234 12.353
Interest paid [=ENEIESS (4) (1)
Income tax refunded £ g [5] Fr 13 81 3,585
Net cash generated from EEEHEANTRS
operating activities 16,311 15,927
Cash flows from investing activity RETBHNRERE
Purchases of property, BEWME BELEEB
plant and equipment (5,115) (8.934)
Interest received =R &N 5,369 1,503
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEBEEL (FTA)
investing activity FRe 254 (7.431)
Net increase in cash and ReRkBReEEBEEEM
cash equivalents o 16,565 8.496
Effect of foreign exchange ME 3, R B ER
rate changes. net o (7,973) 8.396
Cash and cash equivalents at RENzBERRESEFEER
beginning of the year 340,834 323,942
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZEERELEEER
end of the year 20 349,426 340,834
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read PSR e E R ERENET —0F50E

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBERME

GENERAL INFORMATION

Joyce Boutique Holdings Limited (the "Company” and its
subsidiaries (together, the "Group”) are principally engaged
in the sales of designer fashion garments, cosmetics and
accessories.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Victoria
Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
Bermuda. The Company has its primary listing on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 6 June
2019.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied for all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA")
and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of the
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss and
financial derivative assets and liabilities.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement

or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBERME

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 FTESHBR ()

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

New and amended standards, improvements
and interpretation adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new

and amended standards, improvements and
interpretation for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 April 2018.

HKAS 40 (Amendments) Transfers of
Investment
Property

Classification and
Measurement
of Share-
based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS
9 Financial
Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 (Amendments) Clarifications to
HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions
and Advance
Consideration

Annual
Improvements

2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
Project

Save as disclosed in Note 2.2, the adoption of
the new and amended standards, improvements
and interpretation listed above did not have
material impact on the amounts recognised

in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future period.

21 mBEE(E)

(@
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HREMBHRRME
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 FE2EEHEE(H)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HmBEE(E)
(b) New and amended standards, improvements, )

JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

interpretation and revised framework not yet

adopted

New and amended standards, improvements,
interpretation and revised framework which
have been issued but are not effective for the
Group's financial year beginning 1 April 2018 and

have not been early adopted by the Group are

as follows:

e RER A 2 T 2E R - RATERIERT - X
i# R RAEERTER

THRTER BITEAIMELT - Bk - R
RS ATIE R O AR T3 fEh s —
O—/\Em A — ARk etk
3 AR EMIR SR

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BRARUTH 2%
MmN E s S

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)
BB ERFIR R
BB GETERFESH (BFT4)
HKAS 19 (Amendments)

BB ERE195 (BETA)
HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BB ST HERE285 (BRTA)
HKFRS 3 (Amendments)
BBV B HRELRZEINR (BFTA)
HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

8 B 1% R o 2 R 2509 (£ 3T A%)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

BB ISR E A 5105 &
BB G ERFE285 (BT A)

HKFRS 16

BB RS A FE165%

HKFRS 17

BB B R E AR F175

HK(FRIC) - Int 23

28 (BRI BRERELZES)
@235

Annual Improvements Project
(Amendments)

FEBEERB (I X)

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018
ZO—NFHBHREBIIER

Definition of Materials
BEAZER

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

FTEBE] BRSEE

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

REERRRAELE  RIES

Definition of Business

XB o ER

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

BEEEmEZENFER

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

REEREBERNRNEEDLE
2 R E E LSk &

Leases

HE

Insurance Contracts

A4

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

BRI P52 T e E
Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle

ZO—REZO—+EEBUBRE
Rl 2 B

Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting

MRS SIERZIERT
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards, improvements,
interpretation and revised framework not yet
adopted (Continued)

The Group will apply the above new

and amended standards, improvements,
interpretation and revised framework when they
become effective. The Group has commenced
the assessment of the expected impact of
HKFRS 16 as set out below. The directors of

the Company is in the process of assessing the
financial impact of the other new and amended
standards. improvements, interpretation and
revised framework, but is not yet in a position
to state whether they would have significant
impacts on its results of operations and financial
position.

(1) HKFRS 16, 'Leases”
Nature of change
HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016.
It will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the statement of financial
position, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard. an asset (the right
to use the leased item) and a financial
liability to pay rentals are recognised. The
only exceptions are short-term and low-
value leases.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group's operating
leases. As at 31 March 2019, the
Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of approximately
HK$432,593,000 (Note 25).

Upon the application of HKFRS 16, the
Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
of approximately HK$307,000,000 and a
corresponding liability of approximately
HK$351,000.000. The retained earnings
will be reduced by approximately
HK$44,000.,000. In addition, the application
of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EEBEEEE(E)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HmBEE(E)

(b) New and amended standards, improvements,
interpretation and revised framework not yet
adopted (Continued)

(1) HKFRS 16, "Leases” (Continued)

(b) EARERAZHER  RITERBERT - K
#REREEITER (B)

0 BEYEHREERFICT [HE]

(&
Mandatory application date/date of SRFIAR B, NEERANA
adoption by the Group H

The Group will apply the standard from

its financial year commencing on 1 April
2019. The Group intends to apply the
simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year
prior to first adoption. Right-of-use assets
for property leases will be measured on
transition as if the new rules had always
been applied. All other right-of-use assets
will be measured at the amount of the
lease liability on adoption (adjusted for any
prepaid or accrued lease expenses).

There are no other standards that are not
yet effective and that would be expected
to have a material impact on the entity in
the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers on the
Group'’s consolidated financial statements.

The Group elects to adopt HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
without restating comparatives. The reclassification
and the adjustments arising from the adoption of
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 are therefore not reflected in
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2018, but are recognised in the opening of
the consolidated statement of financial position on 1
April 2018,

There is no balance as at 1 April 2018 requires a
restatement as a result of the initial adoption of
HKFRS 9. Balances as at 1 April 2018, which require
a reclassification as a result of the initial adoption of
HKFRS 15, are summarised in Note 2.2(b).

2.2
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces the provision for HKAS 39
that relate to the recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments
and impairment of financial assets.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 "Financial Instruments”

from 1 April 2018 resulted in changes in
accounting policies. The new accounting
policies are set out in Note 2.12.

There is no material impact on the Group's
retained earnings as at 1 April 2018 and no
restatement is made.

(i) Classification and measurement
On 1 April 2018, the management has
assessed which business models apply to
the financial assets held by the Group and
has classified its financial instruments into
the appropriate HKFRS 9 categories.

There is no change in classification of
the Group's financial assets and liabilities
as at 1 April 2018 upon initial adoption of
HKFRS 9 as compared to the classification
under HKAS 39. In addition, the modified
retrospective adoption of HKFRS 9 does
not result in a material adjustment in the
carrying amounts of the financial assets
and liabilities and the retained earnings
as at 1 April 2018 that would require a
restatement.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three main types of

financial assets that are subject to HKFRS

9's new expected credit loss model:
trade receivables;
cash and cash equivalents; and
deposits and other receivables.

The Group was required to revise its

impairment methodology under HKFRS 9
for these classes of financial assets.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(a) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
The Group has assessed the expected
credit loss model applied as at 1 April
2018 and the change in impairment
methodologies has no significant impact of
the Group's financial position and results
of operations and the opening allowance is
not restated in this respect.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables.
The resulted increase of loss allowance
for trade receivables on 1 April 2018 was
immaterial.

Cash and cash equivalents

While cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss
was also immaterial.

Deposits and other receivables

Deposits and other receivables at
amortised cost are considered to be low
risk, and therefore the loss allowance

is determined as 12 months expected
credit losses. The resulted increase of
loss allowance for deposits and other
receivables on 1 April 2018 was immaterial.
The loss allowance for deposits and other
receivables have not further increased
during the current reporting period.

(b) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”
The Group has first time adopted HKFRS 15
from 1 April 2018 which resulted in changes
in accounting policies and adjustment to
the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. In accordance with the
transition provisions of HKFRS 15, the Group has
adopted the modified retrospective application
and no comparative figures are restated.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

In summary, the following adjustments were
made to the amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
the date of initial application (1 April 2018):

2

TESHBE(E)
22 EBIFERESH (E)
) BBYBREERFELH [ EFEAHK
#/ (%)
BEmE RNBEXEREM (ZO0—/\F
POA—H) SR E MR IR
TRETTHRENT

HKAS 18 HKFRS 15

carrying carrying

amount amount

31March 2018  Reclassification 1 April 2018

BHEEHER ERMBHERE

£185 R E F15REHEE

—O0-N\§ —O-N\E

=A=+-H ENOE mA—H

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

BEET T BT BET T

Other payables and accruals ~ HttERERENEE 131,773 (23.607) 108,166
Contract liabilities aHBE - 23,607 23,607

The Group has voluntarily changed the
presentation of certain amounts in the
consolidated statement of financial position

to reflect the terminology of HKFRS 15. As
such, receipt in advance from customers and
outstanding customer loyalty credits from

the customer loyalty programme which was
previously included in other payables and
accruals, totalling approximately HK$23,607,000
as at 1 April 2018, are now classified as contract
liabilities (as included in other payables and
accruals and contract liabilities) to reflect the
terminology of HKFRS 15.

By comparing the amounts reported under
HKFRS 15 in the Group's consolidated financial
statements, with estimates of the hypothetical
amounts that would have been recognised
under HKAS 18 if this superseded standard had
continued to apply to consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
instead of HKFRS 15, the impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March
2019 would be similar to that of 1 April 2018
disclosed above. As a result of the adoption

of HKFRS 15, contract liabilities, rather than
other payables and accruals, of approximately
HK$18.734,000 is recognised in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2019.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

On the other hand., there is no material impact
of adoption of HKFRS 15 on the Group's
consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

2.3 Subsidiaries
2.3.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

(a)  Business combinations
The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBERME

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of

the entity's net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable

net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported

by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result

in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests
to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between

the amount of the adjustment to non-
controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable
to owners of the Company.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBERME

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

b)

(c)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions -
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of

any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in

equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in income statement.
The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as

an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2
2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued) 2.3

JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

2.3.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’'s net assets including goodwill.

2.4 Associate 2.4

An associate is an entity over which the Group

has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Interest in an associate is
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after

the date of acquisition. The Group's interest in an
associate includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss

is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in

other comprehensive income is recognised in

other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group's share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

Associate (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to ‘share of loss of an associate’
in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor's interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associate are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-makers. The chief operating
decision-makers, who are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, have been identified collectively
as the top management that makes strategic
decisions. The executive directors are regarded as
the top management of the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
‘functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(HK$), which is the Company's functional and
the Group's presentation currency.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except when
deferred in other comprehensive income
as qualifying cash flow hedges. All foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other
gains, net’.

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(il income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(i all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, currency translation
differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is partially disposed of or sold,
exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are reclassified to the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2
2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s

carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will

flow to the Group and the cost of the item can

be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the costs of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:

Shorter of useful life or
over the lease term

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 6 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

2.10

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’'s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash

flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging
activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and

are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The
method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged. Derivatives that are not designated as
hedging instruments are classified as financial assets
or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not designate any
derivatives as hedging instruments.

There was no impact on the amounts recognised
in relation to the derivative financial instruments on
adoption of HKFRS 9.

Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss
Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss
represented the call and put options. The financial
asset is initially recognised at fair value on the date
the options were entered into and is subsequently
remeasured at the fair value. Gain or loss arising from
change in fair value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

There was no impact on the amounts recognised
in relation to the derivative financial instruments on
adoption of HKFRS 9.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Inventories
Inventories comprise merchandise for resale and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and
includes all costs of purchases, costs of conversion,
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.12

Financial assets

(a)

(b)

Classification

From 1 April 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income ("FVOCI"), or through profit or loss).
and

those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from

the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss ("FVPL"), transaction costs that

are directly attributable to the acquisition

of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in
consolidated income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model

for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset.

The Group classifies all of its debt instruments
to be measured at amortised cost. Assets that
are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement and presented in "Other gains, net’
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated income
statement.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses

to the consolidated income statement
following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue

to be recognised in the consolidated income
statement as other income when the Group's
right to receive payments is established.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in "Other gains, net” in the
consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

Impairment

From 1 April 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see Note 16 for further details.

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively,
but has elected not to restate comparative
information. As a result, the comparative
information provided continues to be accounted
for in accordance with the Group's previous
accounting policy.

(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets
as loans and receivables. Management
determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. If collection of the amounts is
expected in one year or less they are
classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets. The
Group's loans and receivables comprise
of "trade and other receivables”, "deposit
and prepayment” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBERME

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

(ir)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
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financial assets have expired or have been RILERZERMEE-
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
(i) Measurement i F=

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus,

in the case of a financial asset not at
FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in consolidated income
statement.

Loans and receivables and held-to-
maturity investments are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Financial assets at FVPL are subsequently
carried at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value

are recognised in consolidated income
statement within other income or other
expenses.

Details on how the fair value of financial
instruments is determined are disclosed in
Note 3.3.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

213

2.14

(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 March

2018 (Continued)

(iv)  Impairment
The Group assesses at each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a "loss event’) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds the trade receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. See Note 2.12 for
further information about the Group's accounting for
trade receivables and Note 3.1(ii)(b) for a description
of the Group's impairment policies.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

215

2.16

2.17

218

2.19

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of 3
months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is an entity’'s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the
entity has received consideration. The Group's
contract liabilities comprise receipt in advance from
customers and outstanding customer loyalty credits
from the customer loyalty programme.

Outstanding customer loyalty credits are accounted
for as a separate component of the sales transaction
in which they are granted. A portion of the fair value
of the consideration received is allocated to the
expected award credits redeemed and deferred.
They are recognised as revenue when the award
credits are redeemed or expired.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly in other comprehensive
income or equity. In this case, tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or equity
respectively.
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2

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(a)

(b)

JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

Current tax @
The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the date of statement
of financial position in the countries where

the Company. its subsidiaries and associate
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax )
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial position
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred tax asset is realised or the
deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised

to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and an associate except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally,
the Group is unable to control the reversal of
the temporary difference for associates. Only
when there is an agreement in place that gives
the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liability in relation to
taxable temporary differences arising from

the associate's undistributed profits is not
recognised.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates only
to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the date of consolidated
statement of financial position.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

(b) Bonus plan
Provision for bonus plan is recognised where
contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

(c) Pension schemes
The Group operates the following principal
defined contribution pension schemes:

Occupational retirement schemes
Contributions to the schemes are expensed
as incurred and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave

the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Pension schemes (Continued)

Mandatory provident funds

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are
charged to the consolidated income statement
when incurred.

Others

The Group also participates in the employee
pension schemes operated by the municipal
governments of various cities in the People’s
Republic of China ("PRC"). The municipal
governments are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired
employees. The only obligation of the Group is
to pay the ongoing required contribution under
these schemes. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated income statement as
incurred.

Under these plans, the Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to make further payment
once the required contributions have been paid.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as
incurred.

Long service payments

The Group's net obligation in respect of
amounts payable on cessation of employment
in certain circumstances under the employment
law of the respective countries in which the
Group operates is the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods.

Long service payments are assessed using

the projected unit credit method. The cost of
providing the long service payment liabilities is
charged to the consolidated income statement
so as to spread the cost over the service lives of
employees in accordance with the advice of the
actuaries.

Long service payments are discounted to
determine the present value of obligation

and reduced by entitlement accrued under

the Group's defined contribution plans that

are attributable to contributions made by the
Group. Actuarial gains and losses are charged or
credited to equity in the income statement. Past
service costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the average period until
the benefits become vested.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

2.22

2.23

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle

the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,

the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Provisions of reinstatement costs

Provision for reinstatement cost represents the
present value of the estimated cost for the restoration
work of the Group's leased retail shops agreed to

be carried out upon the expiry of the relevant leases
using a risk-free pre-tax interest rate. The provision
has been determined by the directors based on their
best estimates. The related reinstatement costs, upon
initial recognition, have been included as leasehold
improvement in the consolidated statement of
financial position (see Note 2.7).

Revenue recognition

(a) Sale of goods - Retail

The Group operates a chain of retail stores and
outlets selling designer fashion garments, cosmetics
and accessories. Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised when a group entity sells a product to the
customer, the point in time when the control of the
goods has been transferred to the customer.

Payment of the transaction price is due immediately
when the customer purchases the goods and takes
delivery in the retail stores and outlets.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Sale of goods - Retail (Continued)
It is the Group's policy to sell its products
to the end customer with a right of return
within 7 days. Therefore, a refund liability
(included in trade and other payables) and
a right to the returned goods (included in
other current assets) are recognised for the
products expected to be returned. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate such returns at
the time of sale at a portfolio level (expected
value method). Because the number of
products returned has been steady for years,
it is highly probable that a significant reversal
in the cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur. The validity of this assumption and the
estimated amount of returns are reassessed at
each reporting date.

(b) Sale of goods - customer loyalty programme
(deferred revenue)
The Group operates a loyalty programme where
customers accumulate points for purchases
made which entitle them to discounts on future
purchases. A contract liability for the award
points is recognised at the time of sale. Revenue
is recognised when the points are redeemed or
expired.

Interest income

Interest income is presented as “other income” in
the consolidated income statement, where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes.

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Rental income
Rental income is recognised over time on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease agreement.

Management fee and commission income
Management fee and commission income is
recognised over time on a straight-line basis over the
period when the services are rendered.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27

2.28

2.29

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Receipts or payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
paid to lessee or received from the lessor) are
recognised as income or expense in the consolidated
income statement on the straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group's consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s Directors
or shareholders, where appropriate.

Financial guarantee

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of:

the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments; and

the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles
of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other
payables of subsidiaries are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of
the investment.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBmRME
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 RAREE

3.1 Financial risk factors 31 sRIERER
The Group's activities expose it mainly to foreign REB v EBEEX R INERR fo % -
exchange risk, credit risk. liquidity risk and cash RBECRREASTRENERR 25 K
flow interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk EERERBRRERETES i@gﬂdﬁﬁﬂ$%
management programme seeks to minimise potential B BREABE TN E - REENDTEZ
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. MMERHIENITTET AR S
It is the policy of the Group not to enter into derivative
transactions for speculative purposes.
(i)  Foreign exchange risk W SEREEE

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and
the People's Republic of China ("PRC"), and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to the Euro and United States dollars.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

At 31 March 2019, if Euro had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against Hong Kong
dollars with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$2.630,000 lower/higher
(2018: HK$10.,666,000 lower/higher) mainly as
a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
settlement of purchases.

The Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between Hong Kong dollars
and United States dollars to be insignificant as
Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars
are pegged and hence, foreign currency risk is
considered insignificant.

(i)  Credit risk (i)
The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
bank balances, trade and other receivables
and deposits. The carrying amounts of these
balances in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEREBRRME
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 TREKRER (8)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 £REBEE(8)
(ii)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) 1sEEE(EZ)

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is

a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information.

Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

internal credit rating:
external credit rating;

actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the customer's ability
to meet its obligations;

actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of debtor/customer;

significant increases in credit risk on
other financial instruments of the same
customer; and

significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
customer, including changes in the
payment status of customer in the Group
and changes in the operating results of the
customer.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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REMBmRME
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 SREARER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 ¢RAREER (&)
(i) ~ Credit risk (Continued) i EERE (&)
(a)  Credit risk of bank balances @
To manage this risk arising from bank
deposits, the Group only transacts with
reputable commercial banks which are all
high-credit-quality financial institutions.
There has been no recent history of default
in relation to these financial institutions.
The expected credit loss of bank balances
is close to zero.
(b)  Credit risk of trade receivables (o)

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the
use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for all trade receivables. The Group
considers the credit risk characteristics
and the days past due to measure the
expected credit losses. Given there is no
history of significant defaults from these
trade receivables and insignificant impact
from forward-looking estimates, the
expected loss rate for trade receivables is
close to zero and no loss allowance was
made as at 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019.

The Group's trade receivables comprise
receivables from credit card companies
for retail sales settled by credit cards and
receivable from a fellow subsidiary for
consignment sales.

The Group monitors the trade receivables
individually due to the concentration of
credit risk. Based on historical repayment
trend. there is no correlation between the
risk of default occurring and the collection
past-due status as long as there is no
significant change in the credit rating of
the customers. Historically, the Group's
loss arising from risk of default and time
value of money is negligible.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRRMET
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 csEERER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 eRAREER (&)
(ii)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) 1EERE(Z)
(b)  Credit risk of trade receivables (Continued) b B BENRIENEE R (FE)

Previous accounting policy for impairment
of trade receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade
receivables was assessed based on the
incurred loss model. Individual receivables
which were known to be uncollectible
were written off by reducing the carrying
amount directly. The other receivables
were assessed collectively to determine
whether there was objective evidence that
an impairment had been incurred but not
yet been identified. For these receivables
the estimated impairment losses were
recognised in a separate provision for
impairment. The Group considered that
there was evidence of impairment if any of
the following indicators were present:

significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

probability that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or financial reorganisation;

and

default or late payments (more than
1 year overdue).

Receivables for which an impairment
provision was recognised were written off
against the provision when there was no
expectation of recovering additional cash.

Credit risk of other receivables and
deposits

For other financial assets at amortised
cost, including other receivables and
deposits, management considers that its
credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition with reference to
the counterparty historical default rate and
current financial position. The impairment
provision is determined based on the
12-month expected credit losses which is
close to zero.

Impairment losses on other financial
assets at amortised cost are presented
as net impairment losses within operating
loss. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against
the same line item.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not

be available to meet liabilities as and when

they fall due, and it results from amount and
maturity mismatches of assets and liabilities.
Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of
funding from an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities and the ability to close out
market positions. The Group employs projected
cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by
forecasting the amount of cash required and
monitoring the working capital of the Group to
ensure that all liabilities due and known funding
requirements could be met. In addition, banking
facilities have been put in place for contingency
purposes. The Group had aggregate borrowing
facilities of approximately HK$254,800,000

as at 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$254,800,000).
Borrowing facilities utilised as at 31 March 2019
amounted to approximately HK$9,495,000
(2018: HK$10,775,000). The banking facilities
were secured by corporate guarantees from the
Company.

The table below analyses the contractual
maturities of the Group's financial liabilities.

3

TRARER (&)
31 EREBEE ()

(iii)

HEELERE
REECRBAE S REENEIEEE
ZRB REERBEZSELFHE
@Eﬁﬁﬁ %Emu@ﬁiﬂ ﬁgfiﬁi‘ﬁfﬁ
FRAMIRE - EEE%EE’JE% 1:.%%5
RETTANES RERENERTS
fﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁlﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ f%.
BERE AEATEAMERe 8B NE
EREB Y EIBES  ARRREETEN AT
BHHEBEREMEST KN R
TEEEEBESIARR -R_O0—N
FZA=Z+—H AEEZAFHHEE
4858 45 7 254,800,000 (ZO— N\
F B #254,8000007T) e R ZO— A
FZA=+—B CHEANEEEED
B7E 104950007t (Z O — \F : B
107750007T)  SRITIEE AR R 21
SEERIEIRFE ©

TRETAEECRBENSLIIH
go

Within 1 year or on demand

— BT

2019 2018

—O—h#F —O—N\#F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Trade and bills payables JETHE 5 BRIE R BT & 64,268 56.414
Other payables EIﬁﬁJEHHEIE 31,168 32134
Amount due to an associate FE T EE & A ) 7,829 6.181
Total FER 103,265 94,729
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group's derivative
financial instruments which will be settled on

a gross basis into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the statement
of financial position to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

3

TRARER (&)
31 EREBEE ()

(iii)

MEETEE (F)

TRIBRERVGIRARNEEAES
BB B R TS AR E G AR R E
HLEE T ITHES BT ARG REEE R
2O RPFARBEBABAIREER

LA E
WEmEe

Less than Over
lyear 1lyear Total
—EBT —FE wmam
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
At 31 March 2019 —O—hE=ZR=+—H
Forward foreign exchange  RHAINES 4
contracts - not for hedge —NREE
Inflows mA 42,624 - 42,624
Outflows e (48,308) - (48.308)
At 31 March 2018 —O—N\E=ZR=+—8H
Forward foreign exchange  EHISMNES 4
contracts - not for hedge — T REEH
Inflows i 153,057 39,497 192,554
Outflows Nigast (150,541) (39,916) (190.457)
Cash flow interest rate risk ) BELREFEEE

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group's income and operating

cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates, except for the
interest income derived from bank deposits.

As at 31 March 2019, if interest rates on the
bank deposits had been 10 basis points (2018:
10 basis points) higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, pre-tax loss for the year
would have been HK$349,000 lower/higher
(2018: HK$341,000 lower/higher), mainly as a
result of higher/lower interest income on bank
deposits. Apart from the bank deposits, the
Group has no significant interest bearing assets
or liabilities.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.2
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

Capital risk management 3.2
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders

and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain

an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of

capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to ensure optimal
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking into
consideration the future capital requirements of the
Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and projected
profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic
investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets.

Fair value estimation 33
The table below analyses financial instruments

carried at fair value, by valuation method. The

different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
Inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs).

Level 2 -

Level 3 B

The following table presents the Group's financial
asset and liability that were measured at fair value as
at 31 March 2019.

TRARER (&)

EsERER

AEENESEIERR SREREEEES
B A RBERIR M B WA R A A0 B TR A
o AR RENEREBUREESK

o

AEETERTE Mite s MEREANGRE - S5RiE
B RIZIEMEANIE LR B R BEH - A
SEZRNARA  AREARNEARTK
EEARME ER MR 2 BAEE ) TRE 2
LERDN BB AR R IARRERER

e
=T °

BTHRSIABREAEE AEEESRE
SN TFERROBRESR AERFEES &
TR EERE-

AFEfE
TRRAGEERSEATEE SR AR
T FRBBIREIT :

e

£—E - ARAERAEERRERD
SHIRE CRIGER) -
BB - BTE-ERRENBREN &

BEMBENABENE b
A A REE (BGInER) K
i (BURBE(ER) -

— BEXBEIIMKEAEBERED
BEENE A (BI3ER B
A) e

TRETAEENIHEENABIR_O—N
FZA=t+—HENRFE"

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—E EE e Fib ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Asset BE
Financial asset at fairvalue ZATEEBERCENEREE
through profit or loss - - 1,154 1,154
Liability BE
Financial derivative liabilites T4 4B 8 & - 5,684 - 5,684
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEREBRRME
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 TREKRER (8)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEME (&)

The following table presents the Group's financial
assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value
as at 31 March 2018.

TRETAEENIHEENABIR—_O—N
FZA=t—HFEBNHRFE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ El E-E bk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT T
Assets BE
Financial asset at fairvalue ERATEEBBRLENEHEE
through profit or loss - - 1231 1231
Financial derivative assets ~ fTE&BEE - 3.081 - 3081
N 3,081 1231 4312
Liability BE
Financial derivative liabilities #T4 @ @& & - 984 - 984
The fair values of financial instruments that are not REMERMSEENSR T AN HERNA
traded in an active market are determined by using HERIET - (AERMEEFATEETS
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques g BEOKBEENETEMET WETE —
maximise the use of observable market data where SR T AN A EREMEE NG A S0
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity R AZERMITAIIAE _E-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on IN—IE S % IHE N AN SRR AT BV R M5 2
observable market data, the instrument is included B AZEMIANAE=E RERRLH
in level 3. Binomial model was adopted to measure EFNTEZFTERERA T 2B R - JHRE
the net fair values of the call and put options which = EMERE R AR RN A T TS EE B
required the assessment of the fair market values of LN BN A TS EEEFAYA MG
the equity interest in an associate. Fair market values HEERMRBEeRERF CREGHRS
of the equity interest was determined by the income MEIELFTE -
approach with the use of free cash flows to equity in
discounted cash flow method.
There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 BHE_O-NF=ZA=1+T—HBILFE £—
during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil). CBIEME=E MBI EER(Z0
—N\E )
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets, BEREERRAARE AEEemEERIER
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and e MR EEEER EHREMBUERIE 5]
other receivables and deposits; and the Group's eRHEMEE MefpAERREENESHIRE
financial liabilities, including trade and bills payables. NPERT SRR - B T BRIA K AT IE B DA K
other payables and amount due to an associate, B AR IR 2 BREEEE QN TERS
approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.
4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4 BERGE{EET RAE
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and EETAHE e W RHE T WIRER B A A5 A4
are based on historical experience and other factors, E=ETE REEEEBR THEERREH
including expectations of future events that are believed to RIAIRTE A -

be reasonable under the circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4
(Continued)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning

the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by

definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The

estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(@) Provision for inventories
The Group makes provision for inventories based
on an assessment of the net realisable value of
inventories. Provision for inventories is recorded
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying cost of inventories will not be fully
realised. The quantification of inventory provisions
requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the outcomes are different from the original
estimates, such differences will impact the carrying
value of inventories and provisions for inventories
in the years in which such estimates have been
changed.

(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment
Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations
or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations
require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area

of asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i)
whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not be recoverable;
(i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset in the business;
(iii) the selection of the most appropriate valuation
technique, e.g. the market approach, the income
approach, as well as a combination of approaches,
including the adjusted net asset method; and (iv)

the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and

as a result affect the Group's financial condition and
results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting
future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to
take an impairment charge to the income statement.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred tax assets and taxation in the periods in
which such estimate is changed.

(d) Fair value of financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss
The fair value of a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss that is not traded in an active market
is determined by using valuation techniques, such
as discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models. The fair value derived from these valuation
techniques is based on a number of assumptions.
Any changes in these assumptions will impact the fair
value determined and the amount recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

(e) Fair value of financial derivatives
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair values.
The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged. Derivatives that are not designated as
hedging instruments are classified as financial assets
or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not designate any
derivatives as hedging instruments.

4

BRR & St fhET R A ()

(c)

(d)

(e)
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRERME
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARDEER
The Group is principally engaged in sales of designer REBEFERELERE ol REAHE - A
fashion garments, cosmetics and accessories. Revenue WATERLAT -
recognised during the year are as follows:
2019 2018
—O—N#&E —O—N\%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T VBT T
Sale of goods - recognised at EREE —IZREEER
a point in time 842,419 860,701
(a) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with () BEEFEEEHANEENER

(b)

customers

There is no assets related to contracts with
customers as at 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019. The
Group has recognised the following liabilities related
to contracts with customers:

RZO—NFNA—BE=ZO0—NF=A
—t—H WEEHEEFAREBNEE &
EEEERUTHEEFANBEENEE:

31 March 2019 1 April 2018
—O—h#® —O—N\%F
=Z=A=+—H mA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Contract liabilities aHEE
- Receipt in advance for retail sales —&RTE ZBURFHIA
of goods 13,242 18,447
- Customer loyalty programme — BB E 5,492 5160
18,734 23.607
Significant changes in contract liabilities (b) EHEBZEANE

Contract liabilities have been decreased by
HK$4,873,000 mainly due to decrease in receipt in
advance.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBmRME
5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WARDBER (&)
(¢) Revenue recognised in relation to contract (c) HENEBEBENERIARA
liabilities
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities HE-O—NF=ZA=+—AHLFE BEN=
for the year ended 31 March 2019 related to brought O—N\FNA—Bw#EaNBEERNEHE
forward contract liabilities as at 1 April 2018 are as AL -
follows:

31 March 2019

ZO—h#H
=A=+-—H
HK$'000
BT T
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities as at R —O—N\FMNA—HZ
1 April 2018 BHEEEBANEERKA
- Receipt in advance for retail sales of goods *féiﬁ:' TE 2 TERKIAE 18,447
- Customer loyalty programme —BHEFE 5,160
23,607
There is no revenue recognised in relation to contract RZO—NFMNA—BZ A WEEEL
liabilities for performance obligation satisfied on or ZEaaEERUA -
before 1 April 2018.
The Group determines its operating segments based on SEERBEEREEZILANBIETRIEIERERN
the reports reviewed by the management who makes WMEEELED -
strategic decisions.
The management assesses the Group's business by ERE AR AR R EER MRERRME
geographical location. The reportable operating segments KENPL MR EEE  PEIAERHEMAIS
identified are Hong Kong, Mainland China and other
markets.
Segment operating loss represents the loss incurred by DEPE BRI R D BTS2 BB ARGTRVE R -
each segment before finance costs, income tax expense/ FTisfiB R (o) RAhEE QR (BER) &
(credit) and share of (loss)/profit of an associate. This is F - WAL FT EHERE IR EERUNEER DB KR
the measurement basis reported to the management for SHEDERIR 2 Ao

the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
An analysis of the Group's reportable segment revenue
and operating (loss)/profit by geographical location is as

5 WARDBER (&)
LR AEBERF RIS S B M E 5 A R %
(E18) /B DHanT :

follows:
2019
ZO-N&E
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
5B H Hitr b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
Revenue - recognised at a point intime WA — 1R B R B iR 744,208 97,334 877 842,419
Operating (loss)/profit 2% (BR)/BH (14,592) 69 (5,538) (20,061)
Finance costs BERA (4)
Share of loss of an associate iEBENFER (1,938)
Loss before income tax BRELAIEE (22,003)
Income tax expense EHER (289)
Loss attributable to owners of the RARREGBE
Company (22,292)
Other segment information Hi o BEH
Segment capital expenditures NBEAMRZ 3,190 1,925 - 5,115
Segment depreciation of property, plant 2 W% BE R RETE
and equipment 13,995 3,463 - 17,458
Segment loss on disposal/write-off PEHNE BERIELEEE/
property, plant and equipment i 124 83 - 207
Segment impairment charge on property. 2 #5415 « BiE & & &R E
plant and equipment 1,847 - - 1,847
Segment provision for impairment of DEFERERE
inventories 78 1,249 - 1,327
Note that all the revenue is to external customers. FrBEWARRINRE

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019

- 112 -



JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRERME
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 W)JQA*MSH(TW
The management manages the assets from geographic BEEENME 2 AR REEDHEE- ﬁfﬁ#ﬁi’“
location perspective. Assets of reportable segments HHEETBEERREENREE A RNER
exclude interest in an associate and deferred income tax EFEHEE- ﬁ%@#&%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁT@%ﬁEﬁ ’éﬁ
assets, of which are managed on a central basis. Liabilities EVANSIE/OED

of reportable segments exclude amount due to an
associate.

An analysis of the Group's reportable segment assets by BB EERFEANRIMIE S mE S HEEERES

geographical location is as follows: uﬁéfFZﬂJLZZDT
2019
ZO-hE
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
E s Hith ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Segment assets NBEE 500,242 133,734 2,779 636,755
Unallocated: ?K DELEE:
Interest in an associate REE DR 8,529
Deferred income tax assets BREMEHREE 6,650
Total assets BELS 651,934
An analysis of the Group's reportable segment liabilities by LB AREBRFNILMIG MBI D EEHRED
geographical location is as follows: ‘EEF@J UENE
2019
ZO-h#E
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
E H Hit “m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Segment liabilities PHBE 161,537 28,492 1,100 191,129
Unallocated: AARBE
Amount due to an associate JE B A B R 7,829
Total liabilities BEESR 198,958
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBERME

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5 WAR DERE R ()

An analysis of the Group's reportable segment revenue 5117«7»‘%. O—\F Nihbid 5 El o &M A
and operating loss by geographical location during 2018 is BB -
as follows:
2018
ZO—N\E
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
B H Hith bk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BB T T BT T
Revenue L/ON 763,608 90,681 6.412 860,701
Operating loss EEBE (50,658) (2.437) (5.396) (58.491)
Finance costs BERA (11)
Share of profit of an associate PTG & AR AT 311
Loss before income tax BRELAIEE (55.391)
Income tax credit PEHE R 666
Loss attributable to owners of the RERREGBE
Company (54,725)
Other segment information Hi o BEH
Segment capital expenditures NBEAMRZ 7.328 1606 - 8,934
Segment depreciation of property, plant 2 W% BE R RETE
and equipment 17.697 3.390 580 21,667
Segment impairment charge on property. D&% % - BERREHE
plant and equipment 1697 - 1569 3,266
Segment (utilisation of provision for)/ PHEE (BEDR) RERE
provision for impairment of inventories (18.139) (7,148) 306 (24,981)
Segment reversal of provision for NHEBRU SN BEBEE
onerous contract - (5,808) - (5,808)
Note that all the revenue is to external customers. FrEWMAYRRINRE P o

The management manages the assets from geographic
location perspective. Assets of reportable segments
exclude interest in an associate, current income tax
recoverable and deferred income tax assets, of which
are managed on a central basis. Liabilities of reportable
segments exclude amount due to an associate.

EEENR 2 ARKERENHEE B 5%& Z)

HEEET BT REENRY

pE 0

Lok £

4>+

HEHER EEREREE ARRED -E‘BE’\J
BETEREEMNBERRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRERME
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 uéz)\&’“*lﬁﬁﬂ (&)
An analysis of the Group's reportable segment assets by LR AEE —O— \FRIZME D FmaElHHER
geographical location during 2018 is as follows: WEDFEES M :
2018
—O0-N\E
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
B H Hith Faks)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Segment assets DHEE 536.736 120,238 12,556 669,530
Unallocated: EK DA EE
Interest in an associate N UNGIEok - 10472
Current income tax recoverable ZIKHHFﬁ BER 99
Deferred income tax assets ERFMBHEE 6,603
Total assets EEER 686,704
An analysis of the Group's reportable segment liabilities by A EE —O— N\FRLMEFmEHH B
geographical location during 2018 is as follows: WEDEEGETNT :
2018
—O0-N\E
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
BE F Hith Feks)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Segment liabilities PHBE 163,445 32160 1488 197,093
Unallocated: AOEAE
Amount due to an associate JERTHE & A B FUE 6.181
Total liabilities BERE 203,274
Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and e T EARLESHEE AN RIIE ERi
deferred income tax assets are analysed by geographical AN -
location as follows:
2019 2018
—O—h#® —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong BB 28,706 41,483
PRC H 2,450 4,254
31,156 45,737
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OTHER INCOME

REMBRRMEE

6  Hilzs

2019 2018
—O—h#&E —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest income & 5,369 1,503
Management fee income B IR RS W 2,666 1.301
Consignment commission FiHME 402 1.473
Rental income e e 29,528 32,686
Sample and sundry sales S R FEIHIHE 353 264
38,318 37.227
EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 ERER
2019 2018
—O—-h#E ZO—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cost of inventories FEKA 425,094 474818
Provision for/(utilisation of provision for) GErRE/ (BEHH)
impairment of inventories 1,327 (24,981)
426,421 449,837
Depreciation of property, plant and ME -WERREITE
equipment (Note 14) (P 3E14) 17,458 21.667
Impairment charge on property, M WE K RE
plant and equipment (Note 14) (P 7E14) 1,847 3.266
Operating lease rentals in respect of THREFIEEEERS
land and buildings
- minimum lease payments —EEE K 202,817 215.078
- contingent rents —HAEE 16,796 17.314
Auditor's remuneration ZERD BN & 900 802
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, ME - -BMEEEEBELESE/
plant and equipment 85 207 -
Net exchange (gains)/losses PEX (BT, ERFE (1,530) 5371
Staff costs (including directors’ and chief BIKA (REEERRRERE
executive's remuneration (Note 10)) AEB & —Ki10)
Wages and salaries ITE&E K& 135,781 150.958
Pension costs - defined contribution BRARSKA—AEHKEE
schemes 7,932 7493
143,713 158,451
Other expenses HimE A 84,729 88.923
893,358 960,709
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FEREBRRME
OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 8 E#F (BB KA
2019 2018
—O—h#&E —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Fair value loss on financial asset at fair value RAF(EEBEHLED
through profit or loss (Note 18) TRMEECATEEE
(FF=¥18) (77) (3.615)
Reversal of provision for onerous contract EE S 8 2 B B - 5,808
Net fair value (losses)/gains from financial MESBMI A AFE
derivatives (EBR) BT FE (7,363) 2.097
(7,440) 4,290
FINANCE COSTS 9 RBEKAK
2019 2018
—O—h#® —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST T
Interest on bank overdrafts RITEFEZHNF B 4 11
BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 10 EZRaREEAENEZRER
MANAGEMENT
(a) Directors' and chief executive's emoluments (a) EERTHARMS

Pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation
(Cap. 622C) and the Listing Rules, the emoluments
paid or payable to every Director and the Chief
Executive for the year ended 31 March 2019 are as

RIZR B R A& (56225 ) FH383M% - A 7
(WEEFFMEEM) AP (F622GE) K EH
RABE_O—NF=A=+—RHIFERX
BEENTRERNMSFESIAT

follows:
Discretionary
bonuses
and/or
Salaries,  performance-
allowances related Pension
and benefits bonuses scheme 2019
inkind ~ #®#K /5 contributions Total
Name Fee B RRR  REEMEN Bk E —O-hE
£ e ENER A R ko)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BT BT
Director EE
Mr. Antonio Chan* BBELAES 55 - - - 55
Mr. Lo Kai Kin* BRBEE? 45 - - - 45
Mr. Ng Tze Yuen# REREE? 45 - - - 45
Chief executive THEAR
Mr. Andrew D.F. Keith Andrew D.F. Keithft & - 1,388 1,454 106 2,948
# An independent non-executive director # B IERITES
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REMBRRMEE

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 10 BERSREEABFZLER (&)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments () EBRTHBAZIME (&)
(Continued)
The emoluments of every director and the chief HE-O—N\FZA=T—HLFERNSES
executive for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set RATBEH NS0T
out below:
Discretionary
bonuses
and/or
Salaries,  performance-
allowances related Pension
and benefits bonuses scheme 2018
inkind  JEEWR/ %  contributions Total
Name Fee e MR REEMEN RIK@EHE ZO0-N\&F
£ we EMERF AL iR BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT RETT BETT BETT BETT
Director g2
Mr. Antonio Chan* BREZLE! 55 - - - 55
Mr. Lo Kai Kin* BN 45 - - - 45
Mr. Ng Tze Yuen® REREE 45 - - - 45
Chief executive THEAR
Mr. Andrew D.F. Keith Andrew DF. Keith%t & - 1362 1232 104 2,698
# An independent non-executive director # BYIEMITES
Except for the directors as disclosed above, no other HE_O—N\FERZO—NF=A=1+—H1t
directors of the Company received any fees or other FE B DMPAFIRESIN R AR mEAD,
emoluments from the Group for the years ended 31 S REEWETE R .
March 2018 and 2019.
No directors of the Company waived or returned any BEANFEENESREEABS - TMER
emoluments and no emoluments were paid by the EERARRHAEZEEZMERMSERINA
Group to any of the directors of the Company as an REENFASR AR EZS S ERESH
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a BEME (ZO—NF &) -
compensation for loss of office as a director (2018:
Nil).
(b) Directors’ retirement benefits (b) ESWRMAKFZR

FRLBNTERENERESEIPRANRBE
SREARAR LA B AR HER RS
EEEEANARSENBLEZZHAMEL
HEAMRBHSERNE (ZO—N\F &)

During the year, no retirement benefits were paid
to or receivable by the Directors in respect of
their services as Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries or other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company or
its subsidiary undertaking through defined benefit
pension plans (2018: Nib.
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REMBRRMEE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 10
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(c) Directors' termination benefits

During the year, no payments or benefits in respect

of termination of Directors’ services were paid or

made, directly or indirectly, to the Directors; nor are

any payable (2018: Nil).
(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available Directors’ services
During the year, no consideration was provided to
or receivable by third parties for making available
Directors’ services (2018: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favor of Directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
Directors
During the year, there are no loans, quasi-loans
or other dealings in favor of the Directors, their
controlled body corporates and connected entities
(2018: Nib.

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts
Except for those disclosed in Note 26, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Group was a
party and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year (2018: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include no directors
(2018: Nil), details of whose emoluments are set out
in Note 10(a) above. Emoluments payable to the 5
(2018: 5) highest paid individuals during the year are

(9)

EELRAEERABRNGE RER (B)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

BEERIERBOFE
FRLEMEILRGAES B ZSRERHITH
BTNRIFE (ZO—N\F &) -

BRERHEESREMATE=ENKE

FRLERERBEERB MG THE BN
B(ZO—\F:#&)-

AROES XEFEABBREZSE
EEHECERFLHNERRENER
URERZEATHEMRZNER

FRLEMNESR XREEREHHEARRE
KEREZ BRIEHMERFBUER UKk
BEZEALNEOR S (ZO—N\F &) -

ESAEXS ZPERESHNTAENAERESD
BENRZEE

PRIEBA TSR 2 BT ORI ER & 41 - A RSk
FREMEE  BERNRFRRIKTT MAAE]
ESERIAENETREEAERNBBA
KEXBLEARS RHHEH (ZO0—N
FE) -

IEGasHES
FAhEGRRFMNZEENEES (ZO—N
F /) AR ED SR EXMEH0e - 7
Z(ZO—\F: A% )&= HES 2 Mean
T

as follows:

2019 2018
—O—h#&E —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & « 288 & B ¥18 H| 9,825 9.754

Discretionary bonuses and/or FEREM ISR EE T E A
performance-related bonuses B4 2,583 3142
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIEE R 402 474
12,810 13,370
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(9) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (90 EF Egﬁﬂﬂﬁ S (48
The emoluments of the highest paid individuals fell EaybiES M HERmT
within the following bands:
Number of employees
EEAH™
2019 2018
—O—h#F —O—\%E
Bands &R o
HK$1,500.001 to HK$2,000.000 1,500,0017% EEE,OO0,000}%E - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500.000 2,000,0012% ZE§12,5OO,OOOZ’§7E 3 1
HK$2.500.001 to HK$3.000,000 2.500,001}%7}?:3,000,0002%7} 1 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,0012% E§:3,500,000Z%ZE - 2
HK$3.500.001 to HK$4.000,000 3.500,0017% 7T £4,000,0007 7T 1 -
5 5
(h) The chief executive remuneration by band (hy TEHARZMESEZBWT :
The emoluments fell within the following bands: & HBlaT
Number of Individual
EEAH
2019 2018
—O—h#fF —O—)\F
Bands g o
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,0007% 7T - -
HK$2,000.001 to HK$2.500.000 2,000,0012’% E§2,500.000Z%ZE - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T £3,000,000/% 7T 1 1
1 1
INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 1 FAERER/ (ER)
Hong Kong profits tax and PRC corporate income tax have AR AEEN B ERRAE AtE—O—
not been provided for as the Group has no estimated FZAZTHIEFEYL /ﬂﬂt?/’éﬁﬁﬁm&q] B
assessable profit for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: EREBEHEMBE (ZO—N\F &) -
NiD.
Overseas income tax has been calculated on the BINTER A S B SRR 2 IRITHRRIZ
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of FREMAFTERFETE -
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.
(@) The amount of taxation charged/(credited) to the @ EFRElERAR S (GTA)NBIESRER
consolidated income statement represents:
2019 2018
—O—h#&F —O—N\%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current income tax RNEAFF 133
- Hong Kong profits tax —BBED - -
- Overseas income tax —BINTIS T * 18 -
- Over-provision in prior years —NEFEREN S - (13)
Deferred income tax (Note 24) RIEFTET (FYEE24) 271 (653)
289 (666)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

(b)  The taxation on the Group's loss before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as follows:

11

FISHER, (BR) (&)
b AEEBRERHATERZ HRERAEENEG
MR M E 2B wmaR < 8T

2019 2018
—O—h#F ZO—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Loss before income tax BRERIEE (22,003) (55.391)
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% Z16.5% M KT E 2 Hi1E
(2018: 16.5%) (ZO—N\%¥:165%) (3,630) (9.139)
Effect of different taxation rate in other E AR TR Rz F£E
jurisdictions (239) 45
Effect of share of loss/(profit) of b & RER (&F)
an associate pd-Z 320 (513)
Expenses not deductible for TAINBE 2 X
taxation purpose 887 773
Income not subject to tax mAARB A (926) (381)
Effect of tax losses and temporary RERERTBEIEREERE
difference not recognised a7 3,877 8,562
Over-provision in prior years NEFERENSG - (13)
Income tax expense/(credit) FiSER, (E&f) 289 (666)
DIVIDENDS 12 I’E

No dividends were proposed during the year ended 31
March 2019 (2018: Nil).

The Board has resolved not to declare any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
year of approximately HK$22,292,000 (2018: loss of
HK$54,725,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,624,000,000 (2018: 1,624,000,000)
shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share was equal to basic loss per share as
there was no dilutive potential share outstanding for each
of the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018,

13

HE_O-—NF=A=1T—HBFEILHRREEZE
KBRS (ZO—\F &) -

EZCHARUBE_O—NF=A=1t—"HLFE
EMNRBEEARE (ZO—N\F ) -

B E B
BREABENIREFARBRREREROBE
222920007T ( —ZO— )\ & : [F518 74 #547250007T )
R — B B 31T 1162400000008 (Z O — )\
F : 16240000000% ) EBAT INE ST E -

HRARRBE—O—NFR—_O—\F=ZA=1—
B IEFE AR EEE ] #ER D - it BEgE
BHREFNERENER-
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 WE- -BEIREE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
improvements - KER vehicles Total
HENEEE & AE okl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BB BETT
Year ended 31 March 2018 —O0O-N\¥=ZA=+-H
Opening net book value HEEFE 39.844 21461 - 61,305
Additions NE 5250 3,684 - 8,934
Depreciation (Note 7) e (H57) (15,628) (6,039) - (21.667)
Impairment charge (Note 7) wiE (57) (2.542) (724) - (3.266)
Exchange differences EHZER 348 83 - 431
Closing net book value HRRESE 27272 18,465 - 45737
At 31 March 2018 ZO-NF=ZA=+—H
Cost X 7R 172160 106,264 1220 279,644
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (142.929) (86.674) (1.220) (230.823)
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (1.959) (1.125) - (3.084)
Net book value FEFE 27272 18.465 - 45737
Year ended 31 March 2019 —O-h&=R=t-H
Opening net book value BOREFE 27,272 18,465 - 45,737
Additions HE 4,469 646 - 5,115
Disposal/write-off HE M (83) (124) - (207)
Depreciation (Note 7) e (MW7) (13,183) (4,275) - (17,458)
Impairment charge (Note 7) A (HE7) (1,671) (176) - (1,847)
Exchange differences EXZER (136) (48) - (184)
Closing net book value BRREFE 16,668 14,488 - 31,156
At 31 March 2019 —O-hE=A=t+-H
Cost B 161,560 103,244 1,220 266,024
Accumulated depreciation RIHE (141,541) (87,562) (1,220) (230,323)
Accumulated impairment R HE (3,351) (1,194) - (4,545)
Net book value REFE 16,668 14,488 - 31,156

Depreciation expenses of approximately HK$15,569,000
(2018: HK$19,524,000) has been charged in "direct costs
and operating expenses” and HK$1,889,000 (2018:

HK$2.,143,000) in "administration expenses” respectively.

FEB R H R 488155600007 (ZO— \F 75
#5105240007C ) FE [EER AR EEER ] X8

5 #51.8300007T ( — O — J\£E : 21430007T ) Bl 5+ A
[TTEREA]H-
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REMBHRERME
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 15 FTekENER
2019 2018
—O—-h#E —O—N\#&E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T & ¥ F T
Deposits HisA 70,778 73111
Prepayments TE &R 2,929 3478
73,707 76,589
Less: Current portion B AR ERE (33,884) (17.787)
Non-current portion RHIEH 39,823 58,802
The carrying amounts of deposits and prepayments Fle RFENER ZREEREEL N FERBHER -
approximate its fair value.
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 BZKHMEWRE
2019 2018
—O—h#E ZO—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Trade receivables 2 5 EWARIE 23,611 42,585
Other receivables H b fE YR 18 1,524 1,447
25,135 44,032

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
receivables with an ageing analysis based on invoice date

RZO—NFE=A=1+—HNE S kA MERKREA
W EENE 5 RKIRIAIZESE A B RE D175

at 31 March 2019 as follows: AEAS
2019 2018
—O—h#fF ZO—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 30 days =+HR 22,805 41,387
Between 31 to 60 days =+t—HZXTH 382 961
Between 61 to 90 days AT—HEATH 125 76
Over 90 days ATBEUE 299 161
23,611 42,585
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REMBRRMEE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 16
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

B 5K EAMEWIRE (8)
AEENE ZRIERENREEA NIE¥ REL

2019 2018
—O—h#® —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
e BT T
Hong Kong dollars BT 20,958 38,082
Others Hith 2,653 4,503
23,611 42,585
The Group has established credit policies and the general TEEBEMENEERR  —BRATHNERHAT

credit terms allowed range from O to 60 days.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9. These
receivables relate to certain customers that are financially
viable. The expected losses rate is minimal, given there

is no history of significant defaults from customers and
insignificant impact from forward-looking estimates. As

at 31 March 2019, the directors of the Company were

of the opinion that no provision for loss allowance were
necessary.

Included in trade and other receivables is an amount
due from a fellow subsidiary amounted to approximately
HK$10,302,000 (2018: HK$22,573,000). The amount is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable in accordance to
the Group's established credit policies.

EATARE-

AEBERBE D ARB BN RE LR FR AR
EREMEERRIERE ZFRURREE TS
PO RITIERR ENEE KRB EPHNEAE
HIRDER A KR B RTRE MM At VN E AR E - TAHE
%TfEJWEA O—NE=A=+—R ARFE=
RAEA BRI B R ERE-

BIEEE 5 N E A FEUERTE R 1) 4781510302000
(ZO— )\ : #8E225730007T ) JY B FEUL [ 2 I /B
N RIFE » ZFOB YRR % B R IEAEBREE Y
EEBREN-

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17 REERAEER
2019 2018
—O—h# ZO—N\%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At beginning of the year REH] ) 10,472 7.290
Share of (loss)/profit of an associate FrigE & na (BR) /&7 (1,938) 3111
Exchange differences ER%%E (5) 71
At end of the year RER 8,529 10,472

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the particulars of the associate
are as follows:

A—O—AER-O—NFZA=+—H BEA
AR

Place of Percentage of Issued and fully paid
Name of associate incorporation uity holdin share capital Princ¥)al activities
BENTREHE & i B 3 3 75 F)’T = H 72 H 2 BT R AR RAE EEXHK
Marni (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 49% HK$100,000 divided into  Designer fashion
E 100 ordmaj shares reta|L|ng
BH¥100,0007L 5 BI00R TEELMBEE
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REMBRRMEE

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

17

75A g NE MR ()

Set out below is the summarised financial information BERNFNBEMEERNT AR AEREA
for the associate which is accounted for using the equity E§°
method.
Summarised statement of financial position HE AR R R
2019 2018
—O—h#&E —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST T
Current assets mENEE 34,983 52,420
Current liabilities mBAEE (19,996) (34,665)
Non-current assets EMEBEE 2,419 3,616
Net assets BESE 17,406 21,371
Summarised income statement BEWRE K
2019 2018
—O—h#&E —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Income g 82,719 95367
Expense s (86,674) (89.018)
(Loss)/gain before income tax BEEAT (E18) &F (3,955) 6.349
Income tax expense Fristi & A - -
(Loss)/profit after income tax iz (E18), &7 (3,955) 6.349
Proportionate interest in an associate's 2 Lo FE G Bt 2 A 7
operating lease commitments A& FEE 6,355 9.227
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information REUSE R EREE RN RNERREEEZ HIR
presented to the carrying amount of its interest in an
associate.
2019 2018
—O—h#&E —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST T
Net assets BEFE 17,406 21.371
Interest in an associate (49%) REEE RN R (49%) 8,529 10,472

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, there are no contingent
liabilities relating to the Group's interest in its associate,
and no contingent liabilities of the entity itself.

Amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free,
and repayable on demand. The carrying amount of the
balance approximates its fair value.

RZO—NFR-ZO-—NF=A=+—H £&EH

GIEST =P NIV i

HRB B REMRAAE

MM E RABAS MEEARAREE-

AR =N

BREEEN ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ°
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REMBRRMEE

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 18 BRAVEZBREmLRNEREE
LOSS
The financial asset at fair value through profit or loss ?’H’“HEL Tﬁ SRS MEEDIREEFE
represented the net fair value of the call and put options of WEFE AR B 2T NRE RERREEHARER
the Group's 49% equity interest in an associate. Valuations FEFEE. Ei%ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂé@m/\éﬁﬂﬁ’\]%I%%Eﬁﬁﬁ
of these options were performed by an independent AR HT & B ST R B PR A BE AT
professional qualified valuer, Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Limited.
2019 2018
—O—h#E —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
At beginning of the year REH] 1,231 4,846
Fair value loss on financial asset at BRATVEERERLENSR®
fair value through profit or loss (Note 8) BEZAFEERE (KEs) (77) (3.615)
At end of the year RER 1,154 1.231
FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE ASSETS/LIABILITIES 19 fTELMEE/8E
2019 2018
—O—h#&E ZO—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Assets BE
Forward foreign exchange contracts INEHIE S X - 3.081
2019 2018
—O—h#E —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Liabilities afE
Forward foreign exchange contracts SNEHIE & ,’] 5,684 984
Less: Current portion B AN EER (5,684) (565)
Non-current portion RHIEH - 419
As at 31 March 2019, derivative financial instruments mainly E’\\:O NE=ZA=1+—H TE2MIAEFER
represented foreign exchange forward contracts and the BT R EZINESES ’]0

amounts are denominated in Euro.

The notional principal amount of the outstanding
foreign exchange forward contract at 31 March 2019

is EUR4,840,000 (2018: EUR19.615,000). This foreign
exchange forward contract is held for trading and is
expected to mature within 3 months (2018: 15 months).
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BekBRE&ZEIER
2019 2018
—O—h#E —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Cash at bank and in hand RITMEFRS 162,634 220,899
Short-term bank deposits RERITIER 186,792 119,935
349,426 340,834

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 2.7% (2018: 1.3%) per annum:; these deposits have
average maturities of 80 days (2018: 90 days). The Group'’s
cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the
following currencies:

SHIRTTIF RN ERN R EE27E (—O—/\F:
13E) It FEFHREOFHEHE ROR(ZO—N
F:0OK) ARBENRE MRS FEEBATIE
WREBLL:

2019 2018
—O—h#E —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong dollars BT 87,723 107,606
United States dollars eV 159,545 155,686
Renminbi AR 88,864 67.385
Others HAh 13,294 10,157
349,426 340,834

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT 21 EMEMNERBELEFEELEHNEE

LIABILITIES

2019 2018
—O—h%&E —O—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Other payables and accruals H e RRTE R fEETTE B 102,125 139.695
Contract liabilities (Note 5(a)) A8 aE (WHiEsa) 18,734 -
Less: non-current portion B REIE S (6,913) (7.922)
Current portion NHEB 3 113,946 131,773
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEREBRRME
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT 21 HMEFMEREBEREFEBEERENEE (B)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
Other payables and accruals comprises:- EAbfEERIBREETITRE 25
2019 2018
—O—h#&E —O—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST T
Provision for staff salaries and bonus B TH I R IE4LEHE 16,397 30,436
Provision for reinstatement costs YIEEBIR 2 BE 19,332 18,013
Unamortised rental incentive REHHESER 19,444 17,902
Provision for long service payment RHIRBE 2 2 #1E 6,913 7.922
Other tax payables Hh e FIE 8,871 9,681
Receipt in advance for retail sales of goods &M HE 2 FEWFIE - 18.447
Customer loyalty programme BAEFEE - 5,160
Others HAh 31,168 32,134
102,125 139.695

The carrying amounts of the Group's other payables and
accruals and contract liabilities approximate their fair value
and are denominated in the following currencies:

AEEWEMREMNREAMERE REOBERRE
EEREAFERBUET WA TS RSB :

2019 2018

—O—h#E —O—N\#F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Hong Kong dollars BT 98,684 112,487
Renminbi AR 21,080 26,180
Others HAih 1,095 1,028
120,859 139,695

Included in other payables and accruals are amounts
due to related parties amounted to approximately
HK$7.829,000 (2018: HK$9,885,000). The amounts are
unsecured, interest free and repayable in accordance to
the Group's established credit policies.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBmRME
TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 22 ENEZRENENREE
The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables at 31 March RZO—NE=ZA=+—ANENESREREN
2019 based on due date is as follows: FRRIEBAMERR I T
2019 2018
—O—Nh#F —O—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Due within 30 days =+HREH 60,924 54,295
Due between 31 to 60 days =+—HZXT+HIH 2,556 1.397
Due between 61 to 90 days AT—HZENT+ BRI 316 722
Over 90 days ATHENUE 472 -
64,268 56,414
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and bills REERENE S RIERENEBRANREEN T3
payables are denominated in the following currencies: B RN
2019 2018
—O—h#F —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Euro BT 25,711 24,445
United States dollars ETT 15,923 15.912
Hong Kong dollars BT 10,195 9,485
Japanese yen Hot 3,755 2,728
Others H A 8,684 3.844
64,268 56.414
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBmRME
SHARE CAPITAL 23 A
Number of
shares HK$'000
% 17 2 B BT T
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREEBEIOTTZ EBK
At beginning and end of the year RFEIREFR 3,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRER:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SFREEBEoIOL LB
At beginning and end of the year REARER 1,624,000,000 162,400
DEFERRED INCOME TAX 24 RIEFTISHR
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary BIEAGHAAEEISEEREEASREMTIX
differences under the liability method at the rates FTHE-

applicable in the respective jurisdictions.

EELREARITRIKRARAEELRANGA
B - BIREPTSHS & A — B RS - RIAT KR
SEFTSHEELA B E -

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred

income taxes relate to the same tax authority.

2019 2018
—O—h#&E —O—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST T
Deferred income tax assets EEMEHREE
Deferred income tax assets to be recovered #Bi8121E A & Y B #) 1% &
after more than 12 months TS & E 6,650 6.603
Deferred income tax liabilities BEXESRAasE
Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled — #BiB12{E BB & B HIETE
after more than 12 months FrigtiamE 318 -
2019 2018
ZO—h#& —O—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Deferred income tax assets BIEMSREE
At beginning of the year REH] 6,603 5,950
Credited to consolidated income statement  RéE&Uzs &Rt A (HF3E11)
(Note 11) 47 653
At end of the year RER 6,650 6.603
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
The gross movements in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities accounts before offsetting are as follows.

24 REMEH (&)
EIEFSTHEE M A BERHATH ARSI T :

Deferred tax assets: EEFTSREE
Decelerated
tax
depreciation Tax losses Others Total
BEBERE BIEESE Hit By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETL BETL
At 31 March 2017 “O—+%=A=+—H 1192 5976 9 7177
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated &AM ER (1K) /FHA
income statement (Note 11) CiEzaly 9D (490) 7 (574)
At 31 March 2018 —O-NE=ZR=+-H 1,101 5,486 16 6,603
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated ~REGAKF R A/ (1)
income statement (Note 11) (FyaE11) 1,747 (1,717) 17 47
At 31 March 2019 ZO-h&E=ZB=+-H 2,848 3,769 33 6,650
Deferred tax liabilities: FEEFTSREE:

Accelerated tax depreciation

IMEBIFITE
2019 2018
—O—h#&E —O—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST T
At beginning of the year REA - (1.227)
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated RERABWZER (FIBR) 5T A
income statement (Note 11) (P F11) (318) 1,227
At end of the year RER (318) -

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.

The Group has temporary difference of approximately
HK$566,000 (2018: HK$2,790,000) and potential
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$325,264,000
(2018: HK$295,299,000) to carry forward against future
taxable income, of which approximately HK$139,171,000
(2018: HK$134.531.000) will expire within 5 years. There is
no expiry period for other tax losses.

EEFSHEEARRAN SR A RS EER
PR & FR IS 2t M BE IR T BLPT A5 88 2 TS B 1R /R o

R EFH A 4B E566,0007T (=0 — )\ F B
27900007T ) KIF2 B i 22 M 498 #6325,264.0007T (=
O—\4F : B ¥2952000007T ) KB R MERTRIEE
Al AEE LUK AR SR B R - R A8 B
1391710007T ( —O— \ & : ##1345310007T ) K9 TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

COMMITMENTS 25 EIE
Operating lease commitments - as lessee (a) REBVERE-—FAHEE
At 31 March 2019, the Group had future aggregate RZO—NF=A=+—8 KNEEIRETT
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BEgR S HEMEN 2 R REERERFE
operating leases as follows: CEY(NE
2019 2018
—O—h#&E ZO—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Land and buildings: T RIEF:
Not later than one year F—FR 184,206 207,510
Later than one year and not later than HF_ZFAFR
five years 245,057 305,317
Later than five years AFMNE 3,330 -
432,593 512,827
The above lease commitments only include LHAEAEEEFEEAHSRE U ITEE
commitments for basic rentals, and do not include TEE R Z & IR 0 i & SRR TE /K TR e ER
commitments for additional rentals payable, if any, SMESREGE (0F)  AAREARLETZE
when turnover of individual retail shop exceeds JERTERSMES ©
a pre-determined level as it is not possible to
determine in advance the amount of such additional
rentals.
Operating lease commitments - as lessor (b) REFERE-HAE

(b)

(c)

At 31 March 2019, the Group had future aggregate

RZO—NF=A=1+—0H AEERETA

minimum lease receipts under a non-cancellable BoEmcEHEm R RRTEREK T4
operating lease as follows: REGAN
2019 2018
—O—Nh#F —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Land and buildings: TH RIEF:

Not later than one year E—FNAN 1,292 20,995
Receipts in respect of operating leases where R BEAEE MR A MBI L EHEK
rentals vary with gross revenue of the lessee are not o WA BIEEER 2 KRR AR E W EE
included as future minimum lease receipts. Mo
Capital commitments (c) BEREE

There are no capital commitments for the Group as at
31 March 2019 and 2018.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBmRME
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 HEBATHRS
The immediate holding company of the Company is JoyBo REBMEEERRAB AJoyBo International
International Limited, a company incorporated in the British Limited » IR BB ZEEEK Y 2 AT o ARE B B HAL
Virgin Islands. The ultimate holding company of the Group PN B A Wisdom Gateway Limited » 7A & Bz 2B
is Wisdom Gateway Limited, a company incorporated in = AV /NI
the British Virgin Islands.
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BREFE ISR T AT REEIN FRREKET2E
statements. during the year. the Group had the following ZEEBATHEAR SO T :

significant related party transactions:

(a) Transactions with fellow subsidiaries () HEREAWEARNRIS
2019 2018
—O—h#F ZO—N\%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Rental expenses and revenue EXTRAME QA
commission paid to fellow subsidiaries & % RIWRAFHE 23,748 23.695
Rental income received from BRERME QS WS
fellow subsidiaries 25,470 30,791
Note: Pt = -
The above related party transactions are carried at terms NEBEFEATHRGRRES LRAREMK
mutually agreed between the parties. AT EATH
(b) Transaction with an associate (b) EEEEATMNRE
2019 2018
—O—h#F —O—N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Management fee received from BlEERARNEEREER
an associate 2,666 1.301
Note: Pt = -
The above related party transactions are carried at terms N EBEFEATHRGBRES LRAR B K
mutually agreed between the parties. HETEATH
(c) Key management compensation (c) TEEEAEMSE
Details of disclosure are shown in Note 10. BRARBEDFIINMFTE0
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HREMBHRRME
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 27 ARwZMBARRE
2019 2018
—O—-h#E —O—N\%F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & BT T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries IR NG (a) - -
Current assets mENEE
Deposits and prepayments e RERER 59 25
Amounts due from subsidiaries & UR BT B8~ R 3B 416,024 414,274
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBeFEER 507 420
416,590 414,719
Total assets EEAH 416,590 414,719
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners DNERREILER
of the Company
Share capital fi& A< 162,400 162,400
Reserves s (b) 253,698 251,957
416,098 414,357
LIABILITIES =K
Other payables and accruals HM RIS R EETIE B 492 362
Total liabilities EEAE 492 362
Total equity and liabilities EzkaEesE 416,590 414,719
The statement of financial position of the Company was KRR HBRAREBESER=_O—NF~A
approved by the Board of Directors on 6 June 2019 and NHBBEMARES -
was signed on its behalf.
Stephen T.H. Ng Paul Y.C. Tsui
Chairman Director
RRE £y X<
*E EBFE
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REMBRRMEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 27 ARARZEBBARRE (B)
(Continued)
(@) Interests in subsidiaries (@) FriEMiE AR ER
The list below gives the principal subsidiaries of PIERMIARNEERRERNFEREFEA
the Group which are in the opinion of the directors, e TT%EZZF BEREEFZEH 2 ARAT]
principally affect the results and net assets of the WEE
Group.
Proportion held ~ Nominal value of issued and
Place of incorporation Place of TEXK fully paid-up share capital/
Name and kind of le;;?al entitgx operations _ Direct Indirect re istered capital . Princgal activities
DR B AR RECERER £E8kE HEEE BESS TREBZRE /GMER  FEEH
Joyce Boutique British Virgin Islands, limited  Asia 100% - US$1500 divided into Investment holding
International Limited liability compan M 1500 ordinary shares BAER

(b)

RERAEE ERELAT

% L1500 BL5000% & &R

Joyce Boutique Limited Hong Kong. limited liability ~ Hong Kong - 100%  HK$3,677,785 divided into DeS|gner fashlon retailing
com an; £ 1000 ordinary shares ERIER
BN & %3 677.7857L
7 ALO0OKR & ik
JB Management Limited ~ Hong Kong. limited liability ~ Hong Kong - 100%  HK$10,000 divided into Provision of management
company_ BB 1000 ordinary shares services
BE BRALAR BH10000LH ALOOKR LB REEBRY
Joyce Beauty (Hong Kong) Hong Kong. limited liability  Hong Kong - 100%  HK$10,000 divided into Cosmetics retailing
Limited com an; £ 10000 ordinary shares TEHME
Bt 78#10,0007T 5 A10,0008% &
Joyce Boutique (Hong Hong Kong limited liability ~ Hong Kong - 100%  HK$2 divided into 2 Investment holding
Kong) Limited com 0 ordinary shares BER
EE ﬂEEE Al BT BAREBR
HEB(LB)WEFRRT  PRC wholly foreign-owned  PRC - 100%  RMB 20000000 Designer fashion retailing
enterprise HEAR AR #20,000,0007C & d\stnbunon
HREARLME: HHE PEEEY A
SNEBELE
JB Retail Limited Hong Kong limited liability ~ Hong Kong - 100%  HK$1,000,000 divided into Designer fashion retailing
com B 1,000,000 ordinary shares TERMREER
EE ﬁEE GH/N b mooo 0007t
3 /1,000,000 & i ik
JLBS Limited Hong Kong. limited liability ~ Hong Kong - 100%  HK$10,000 divided into Provision of buying
com an; BB 1000 ordinary shares services
Bk 100007 A ALOOOKR LB REFRERY
Joyce Boutique Hong Kong limited liability ~ Hong Kong - 100%  HK$1 divided into Provision of secretarial
Secretaries Limited com N 1 ordmary share services
EE KEE N BEITH RIRE REWERS
JB Assets Limited Hong Kong. limited liability ~ Hong Kong - 100%  HK$10,000 divided into Holder of trademarks and
company_ & 1,000 ordmary shares domain names
BE BRALEAR 10000 A ALOOOKR LB #HABRRAS
Reserve movement of the Company (b) XABZFEESE
Share  Contributed Retained
premium surplus earnings Total
1718 BB ZREA By
HKSO00  HK$000  HKSO000  HK$O00
BT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2017 Z0 *_Jgﬁ mA—H#&R 3728 159,375 299,363 462,466
Loss for the year FEBE - - (210,509) (210.509)
At 31 March 2018 ZO-N\¥=A=t—B#&RE 3728 159,375 88,854 251,957
At 1 April 2018 “O-N\fMA-B&R 3,728 159,375 88,854 251,957
Profit for the year FEEA - - 1,741 1,741
At 31 March 2019 ZO-hE=ZR=t-H&#E 3,728 159,375 90,595 253,698
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A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from

JOYCE

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

TFEUBEE

AEEBREREMRFEZEAMEEREERGE
BENHEELBERRE YCEFMEFHEZ 2GR

the audited accounts and reclassified as appropriate, is set out e
below.
RESULTS Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
ES 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZO—-h#E —O0—N\#%¥ —O0—+t% —O—R~*F —O—Th%E
=Z=f=+-B =F=+—-B =A=t+—-H =A=+—-B Z=A=+—8
EELL FEIE FEIE FEIE FEIL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T BT T BET T BT T
REVENUE LON 842,419 860,701 954,368 1,179,393 1,325,835
OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT BX (BR) /&7 (20,061) (68.491) (38.839) (78.860) 44038
Finance costs BEKAK (4) 11 (9) (12) (14)
Share of (loss)/ iRl =N
profit of an associate (B8)/ BN (1,938) 311 (1,514) (6.679) 642
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME &A1 (E18) /&7
TAX (22,003) (55.391) (40,362) (85.,551) 44,666
Income tax (expense)/credit FTIE™ (ER) /K% (289) 666 (1.492) 7.536 (11.591)
(LOSS)/PROFIT NGRS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS (E8) /&7
OF THE COMPANY (22,292) (54.725) (41,854) (78,015) 33.075
Interim dividend FERRL S - - - - 32,480
Final proposed dividend BRENRBRE - - - - -
Total dividends kB 4@%E - - - - 32,480
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES As at As at As at As at As at
EEHEE 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
R=ZO-h&E RZO—-NE RZO—*+F RZO—F"FE NZO—"#%F
=f=+-B =BF=+—-8B =A=+—-8 =B=+—-B =A=+—8H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T BT T BET T BET T
Property. plant and equipment ~ #1% B E & & 31,156 45,737 61305 50,327 59,472
Deposits, prepayments e BREAR
and other assets HpEE 39,823 58,802 64,922 62,755 65.566
Interest in an associate B D B AR 8,529 10472 7.290 8797 16.950
Financial asset at fair value E’&J—r@ﬁﬂ
through profit or loss BRLENERERE 1,154 1.231 4,846 5,760 5012
Deferred income tax assets BLEFMEHEE 6,650 6,603 7161 9233 9,610
Current assets REEE 564,622 563,859 561,345 633,953 772,337
TOTAL ASSETS BBE 651,934 686,704 706,869 770.825 928,947
Non-current liabilities FREBEE (7,231) (8.341) (8,080) (20,929) (11,339)
Current liabilities mEAE (191,727) (194,933) (169,532) (177.149) (239,775)
TOTAL LIABILITIES BafmE (198,958) (203.274) (177.612) (198,078) (251,114)
NET ASSETS BEFE 452,976 483,430 529,257 572747 677.833
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